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Architecture that reshaped the city

From

Government
Buildings on
Merrion Square to
Earlsfort Terrace
itself, UCD's
architectural
presence has
always been felt
in Dublin, writes
Emma Cullinan

ehind the mea-Classical
fagade of the Natiomal
Cencert Hall building in
Earlsfort Terrace, Duhlin,
stands & mix of structures from
garlier times that are as varied as
the histary of the site itself and of
University College Dublin.

This area of Dublin was homs
to many grandees; Lord this and
Earl that, whose names are
remembered in neighbouring
stres=ts. The origin of the nams
Iveagh Gardens, for instance,
meeds little introduction = this
extensive urhan park was once n
Guinness-family parden.

But they weren't the first to
cown what was farmerly known ns
Lesson  Fields. As Professar
Domal McCartney explains in his
cantribution to the forthcoming
puklicatian Farewell o the Ter-
race, the history of this site dates
kack to Clonmell Houss on Har-
court Sireet built for John Scoit,

This huilding b=came n schonl
run by Dir Quinn who invited
Jahkm Henry Mewman to ladge
there during his visits to Dublin
where he lectured on the need for
auniversity. The Catholic Univer-
sity op=nad in three huildings on
51 Stephen's Green, ane of which
wnas Newman's own house at &
Harcourt Street,

Sopin, whio had become the Earl
of Clonmell acquired Leeson's
Fizlds from the Leeson family
and same farenlamd, o create a
garden. This was opensd to the
public in 1817 and Benjamin Les
Guinress then houghe them in

1852, hence the name Ivengh Gar-
dens. [t was here that the Great
Daublin Int=rmacicnal Exhibition
wis held in 18465, part of o wide
interest in such wisitor attractions
that incleded the Crystal Palace
in Lomdon im 1851, The Lendan
firm of Ordish and Le Feavre wha
worked on the English exhibkition
building alse worked on the iron
and steel part of the new =xhibi-
tiom building in Duklin.

Governmant
bulldings, =M, was
lormetly the college
of Sclence. Merville
House an the Balfield
[:ﬂl‘l'lrll.lin. above and a
tountain In the
veagh Gardens, right

Daublin-based architect Arthur
Gresham Jonss won a competi-
ticn to design the exhikition
building on the Earlsfort
Terrace/Tveagh Gardens site.

D Careline Casey, in her con-
tribation o the Farewell to the
Terrace pablication, describes it:
“lones' exhikition building had a
MAascnry oore cantaining twacon-
cert halls, lecture and reading

raams together with extensive
kitchen and service areas in the
basement. The fagade to Earlsfort
Terrace was extensive with a two-
starey partico of Daric and Corin-
thian columns at the centre of the
masonry hlock. The glass
‘transept’ or Winter Garden was n
prard vaulted and galleri=d stroc-
ture across the rear.™

It is the zoncert halls in this

kecoming the MNatiomal Concert
Hall in 198L while the Winter
Garden was dismamtlad.

The university grew through
warions locatians and names until
am &ct af 1908 led to the formation
of University College Duhblin, In
1212 am architectural competition
wns held - averseen by Henry
Hare af the RIBA {Royal Instituts
of Hritish Architects) to fimd a

reoms, dining and exhibition

PERIOD RESTORATION ON-CAMPUS

The UCD campus at Beffield has an smpnes.
sive collestan of penod houses, all fram
foamer esfaies anthe camipus land, and thi
urmners iRy 15 gradually restonng thase

The consemvation progrmmme, which s
being lamgely finded theough private dora-
tans. bBegan with one of the Universiy's
builgengs in Dublin oty centre. Mewman
House

MEWMAN HOUSE

& iuated on St Siephens’ Goeen, this actu-
ally comgrises fwo buildings, dating fram
the 18th centurny

Humber B5 was designed by Richard
Castie in a pared Palladian style. whibe
number 86, built 25 wears later in 1TES. s
mane Rocooo

Bath hawe special plasterscd: the first
by the Lafranchini brothers and the second
by stucce master Robert West, The restara-
ton work was camied out by Sheshan &
Barry frehitects

building that sarvive today, one

UNIVERSITY LODGE

The firm alsa woreed on the restoration of
Unnersity Lodge. the residence of BCD pres-
idznis, which has a Greek fagade that was
added to a plainer - probably Georgian
bauilding - mn 1840

BELFIELD HOUSE

This howse dating from 1831 was
restoned in a project carried put by archi-
tects Frrgerald Kavanagh and Partners

LIGOURI HOWSE

Fitzgerald Kavanagh also oversaw the res-
toration of ths Palladianstde buildeg
datang from the earty 1800

MERVILLE HOUSE

Meralle, &bove and lefl. whech was built
around 1750 was mestoned by anchibects
Bawvanagh Tude, who resfructured the
pround flopr and brought in 5 peciaksts to
restore the plastenvork

designer for the new university

bavildimg. (hne stipulacion, writes
Casey, is that the architect be
Irish, nat something that archi-
tects today enjoy. Indesd, no
whelly Irish proctice is on the
shortlist for the new UCD
Gateway building,

The winmer in 1912 was
Rudelph Maximillian Butler of
Daalin and Butler Architeces,
with a classical design. This was
perhaps parcly in a reaction o an
official decument, guoted by
Casey, that the new university
could match nearby Trinity, wha
hind commissioned an impressive
lime-up of architects aver the pre-
¥ious centuries

"Were there any marked differ-
ence betwesn the dignity of the
bildings of Trinity College and
those of the new College, it
would serve o prevent the
Reman Catholics of Irelard being
canvinced that the principle of
equality upon which ... they have
througheat insisted had not besn
admitied and acted upon.”

Certainly in scale, writes
Casey, the new building's facade
whs a match for Trindty, st 520 ft
wide “the Earlsfort Terrace far
pxceeds the west front of Trinity
College ... the design conscipusly
refers to the riverfront of [ames
Gandor's Custom House, in
which faur pavilicns with pairs of
giant columns are emploved o
articulate the centre and ends aof
the lang fagade.”

Butler’s desipn, executed by
the Crampton building firm, is
oftem considered rather severs,

keing without much omament
and faced in limestone which,
like the architect, was [rish {ac a
timewhen pepple wers getting jit-
tery abaut the use of English Port-
Land stonel

It was Butler's aim o have n
building free of ormament. He
wns well versed in international
mavements in architecture and
wns no deubt awnare of Austrian
architzct Adelf Loos’ essay om
‘mronament and crime” written in
1908 and translated into English
araurd the time the Earlsfort Ter-
race building was being com-
structed. Part of Loos' reasoning
was that ormamentation wouwld
date a building.

Just a few years previously
Petz=r Hehrens had crented the
AEG Turhine factory whose glass
and ste=l top and heavy, solid
masanry carners spoke of the
industrial nge, and Modernism.

Butler envwisaged a quadrant
with various university depart-
ments on all four sides. But in the
end only the north and east sides
were completed. As MoCarney
writes: "LICD im Earlsiort Ter-
race was the last major project of
the Hritish administeation in
Drubling and like the country itself
it was left truncated as the British
withdrew,”

Yet, despite its ornament-fres
fagade ard tough-locking lime-
stane, on winter's evenings when
the lights are on within, the
building provides n worderful
sense of oocasion to concert
EOBTE.



